
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING OF THE TOWN OF FAIRFIELD 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

 
The Regular Monthly Meeting of the Town of Fairfield was held on Monday, January 25, 2010, at 
Osborn Hill Elementary School, Stillson Road, Fairfield, Connecticut. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 8:00 P.M. by Moderator James Walsh. 
 
PRESENT:  42  ABSENT:  8  VACANCY:        0 
 
PRESENT: Becker, Challinor, Richmond, Sundman, Walsh, Ambrose, A. Harrison, Steele, Stewart, 

Varian, Bateson, Conley, Ference, McCullough, Santalesa, Hug, Palmer, S. Parker, Gall, 
Garskof, McAleese, Smey, Stamler, Brogan, Kupchick, Marmion, Vahey, Hoffkins, 
Llewellyn, Lynch, Schwartz, Braun, Hoffmann, Kelly, McCarthy, Takami, Dillon, 
Felner, McGinty, Millington, Mirabile, Way  

 
ABSENT:  DeMartino, R. Parker, Luciano, Cullen, E. Harrison, Mears, O’Connor, Rubino 
 
ITEM NO. 1 ON CALL: PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND MOMENT OF SILENCE 
 
First Selectman Ken Flatto led the Body in the Pledge of Allegiance and a Moment of Silence.  
 
ITEM NO. 2 ON CALL: STATE OF THE TOWN ADDRESS BY THE FIRST SELECTMAN 
 
First Selectman Kenneth Flatto delivered an address on the State of the Town. See Address by First 
Selectman attached hereto. 
 
ITEM NO. 3 ON CALL: REPORT ON LEASES OF TOWN BUILDINGS 
 
The annual lease report from Asst. Town Attorney Eileen Kennelly was distributed with the Call. 
 
Faith Dillon, District 9, noted that Pilot House received a new lease at Grasmere for $1.00 per year. She 
asked if feelers were put out to see if anyone else was interested in paying for the use of the property. 
 
First Selectman Flatto said that it is a short-term lease and though there was a concern about having an 
empty building, Pilot House was ready to go in after they had to leave Fairfield Woods Middle School 
last summer. We did not want to see this good program fall apart.  
 
Ms. Dillon said we cannot put them out now but our first priority should be to our taxpayers. 
 
Mr. Flatto pointed out that they are just using the multi-purpose room at Grasmere School,  and since it is 
in a residential zone there is a limit as to what can go in there.  
 
Nick Mirabile, District 9, said that this is an informative report but in the future would appreciate more 
information, such as the rent per square foot. 
 
ITEM NO. 4 ON CALL: TO HEAR A REPORT FROM THE BLIGHT OFFICER 

CONCERNING CONDEMNATION AND BLIGHT 
 
The blight report from Blight Officer Jim Gilleran was distributed with the Call. 
 
 



REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MEETING 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

2 of 5

 
Blight Officer James Gilleran discussed the report and said that 24 new properties have been added. Three 
properties have been liened and one of those, a commercial building on Commerce Drive, has been 
demolished. When possible he tries to direct property owners to Social Services or Community 
Development, but some people's income levels are just over the allowed amount. He suggested that the 
ordinance be funded, or that they be allowed to use the fines to correct some of the blight issues. He said 
they have collected over $70,000 so far. 
 
Peter Ambrose, District 2, said that he read in the paper that the threat of foreclosure has led to a robust 
cleanup effort on one of the properties but that efforts on two other have stopped. He asked why some 
individuals are given a break by having their house painted with a portion of the fine money. He asked 
who makes the decision to instigate foreclosure proceedings. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that the Board of Selectmen and the Town Attorney make the decision. 
 
Mr. Ambrose asked if the decision is made on a case-by-case basis or an equal basis. 
 
Mr. Gilleran explained that after thirty days a lien is placed on the property. On the Commerce Drive 
property, once the foreclosure went to court the judge ordered the fines be reduced but that did not clean 
up the property. 
 
Mr. Ambrose asked who would do the work if the town were to take on the responsibility of cleaning the 
blight. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that part of the work was done by town employees but they used an outside tree and 
paint contractor. 
 
Cristin McCarthy Vahey, District 6, asked about graffiti. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said since graffiti was added to the blight ordinance in 2009, there have been no complaints. 
 
Ed Bateson, District 3, asked who reduced the fines on the Commerce Drive property. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that the owner and his attorney requested it of the Board of Selectmen and the Town 
Attorney and an agreement was reached. 
 
Mr. Bateson asked what action was taken after the Dalewood Avenue property was tabled at the Board of 
Selectmen. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that he requested foreclosure proceedings commence on both Halley Avenue and 
Dalewood Avenue but since they were tabled, one would have to ask the Board of Selectmen what the 
status is. 
 
Brenda Kupchick, District 6, said that the Dalewood Avenue property was on the Blighted Properties list 
when she was on the RTM seven years ago. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that was the property next door which was on the Condemnation Board agenda for 
years. 
 
Ms. Kupchick asked why the properties on Halley and Dalewood were tabled but still are not cleaned up. 
 
 



REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MEETING 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

3 of 5

First Selectman Flatto said that some work had been done on the blighted properties, although he 
acknowledged some issues remain.  The homeowner is financially distressed and the Board intends to 
work with them and not let them lose their home, so they stopped the clock on the fines so that they can 
do the repairs. The only foreclosure action that has commenced was on commercial property. Individual 
properties should be discussed at the Board of Selectmen meetings. 
 
Moderator Jim Walsh said that the Blight Ordinance Committee discussed setting up a separate fund for 
fines and said that the ordinance could be amended to put the fines in a separate fund. He said that the 
intent was never for the ordinance to be a money-maker. 
 
First Selectman Flatto said it could be done like the Land Acquisition Commission fund. 
 
Mr. Gilleran said that that would help and that in most instances, a truck and two men could remove the 
trash on a property in a day. 
 
Mr. Ambrose said that he is not opposed to funding the ordinance but that some homeowners are 
contemptuous of the ordinance and this would let them off the hook. He is opposed to treating bad 
conduct with rewards. We are not using the foreclosure process effectively. 
 
Mr. Flatto said that the foreclosure process takes a long time. 
 
Mr. Ambrose said that the amount of fines out there warrant more effective collection. 
 
ITEM NO. 5 ON CALL: APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 

ON DECEMBER 15, 2008 
 
Upon motion made, duly seconded and carried with 41 in favor, 1 abstention (Kupchick), the minutes of 
the previous meeting were approved as distributed. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
The Moderator reported that Items numbered 6 and 8 on the Call were eligible for the consent calendar. 
 
VOTE:  Items numbered 7 and 8 were approved with 41 in favor, 1 abstention (Vahey). 
 
ITEM NO. 6 ON CALL:  APPOINTMENT OF MIRIAM FRANK TO THE SPECIAL PROJECTS 

STANDING BUILDING COMMITTEE 
 
This item was on the consent calendar. 
 
ITEM NO. 7 ON CALL: APPOINTMENT OF SANDYE MANN AS AN ALTERNATE 

MEMBER TO THE HARBOR MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 
 
The Moderator moved this item as distributed with the Call, duly seconded. Ms. Mann was present. 
 
**See Committee Reports Attached Hereto and Made a Part Hereof. 
 
Mr. Bateson asked that contact information for appointees be given to Committee Chairmen so they can 
be assured that appointees get to their meetings. 
 
First Selectman Flatto explained that a letter goes to each appointee explaining the process for RTM 
approval and he will be happy to “cc” each chairman. 



REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MEETING 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

4 of 5

Ms. Mann explained that after she attended the L&A meeting she did not realize that Public Works was a 
separate meeting. She discussed her interest in serving on the Harbor Management Commission. 
 
VOTE:  The appointment of Sandye Mann to the Harbor Management Commission was approved by 
unanimous voice vote. 
 
ITEM NO. 8 ON CALL: APPOINTMENT OF  BRIAN P. VAHEY TO THE EMPLOYEES’ 

RETIREMENT BOARD 
 
This item was on the Consent Calendar. Mr. Vahey was present. 
 
ITEM NO. 9 ON CALL:  RESOLVED, THAT KENNETH A. FLATTO, FIRST SELECTMAN 

OF THE TOWN OF FAIRFIELD, BE, AND HEREBY IS, 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE ON BEHALF OF THE TOWN OF 
FAIRFIELD A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO 
COMPLETE THE RENOVATION OF THE WEST WING OF THE 
PAVILION LOCATED AT PENFIELD BEACH, AND FURTHER 
RESOLVED, THAT KENNETH A. FLATTO, FIRST SELECTMAN, 
IS HEREBY AUTHORIZED TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE ANY 
AND ALL AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO OBTAIN A STEAP 2010-08 GRANT WITH THE 
STATE OF CONNECTICUT FOR THE PENFIELD WEST PAVILION 

 
The Moderator moved this item as distributed with the Call, duly seconded. 
 
**See Committee Reports Attached Hereto and Made a Part Hereof. 
 
Mr. Bateson asked if the building committee considered adding heat to the building. 
 
Penfield Building Committee member Linda Crowley said that the committee considered adding air 
conditioning and continue to discuss it. 
 
Mr. Bateson said that he had asked about heating. He asked if Ms. Crowley meant adding an H-VAC 
system to which Ms. Crowley replied affirmatively. 
 
Ms. Kupchick spoke in favor of the project and said that it has been delayed and reconfigured. She 
congratulated Public Works Director Rich White and Recreation Director Gerry Lombardo for doing a 
great job for the town. 
 
Harold Schwartz, District 7, said that this item has nothing to do with the building committee; that it is a 
grant and asking questions of the building committee is not germane to the issue. 
 
The Moderator said that Mr. Schwartz makes a good point except that all involved people are present so 
that questions can be answered. 
 
Mr. Bateson pointed out that the STEAP grant states that the building is unheated and he pursued the 
issue because we do not want to lose an opportunity. 
 
First Selectman Flatto said that the grant is very flexible and does not require all the specifics mentioned 
in the application. 
 



REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MEETING 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

5 of 5

VOTE:  The Personal Services Agreement with the State of Connecticut for financial assistance to 
complete the renovation of the west wing of the pavilion located at Penfield Beach and execution of the 
STEAP 2010-08 grant application was approved by unanimous voice vote. 
 
ITEM NO. 10 ON CALL: REFERRAL OF ORDINANCE 
 
The Moderator reported that the ordinance providing for the Town of Fairfield’s membership in the 
Greater Bridgeport Council of Elected Officials was discussed and amended by the Legislation and 
Administration Committee, and will appear on the Call of the next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
No action was required at this time.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business and upon motion made, duly seconded and carried unanimously, the 
meeting was adjourned at 9:40 P.M. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Elizabeth P. Browne 
Town Clerk 
 
Recorded by: Ann Roche 
 
 
 


